Muskego Way and the City of Milwaukee Neighborhood Profile (2017)



April 2019 Prepared by Data You Can Use For the Muskego Way Neighborhood



Carrie Koss Vallejo, Eric Mendes, Nadean Kannal and Kathleen Pritchard contributed to this report.

Please direct questions or comments about this report to:

Carrie Koss Vallejo Carrie@datayoucanuse.org (414) 301-1733

Data source used in this analysis:

American Community Survey 5 year estimates for 2017 were used in this report. Note that data are based on *estimates* from the American Fact Finder survey. Margins of error are not readily available but can be calculated as needed for this custom geography.

American Fact Finder tables referenced in this report include: B01001, B08201, B11001, B15001, B17001, B19013, B25041, B25063, B25087, S2301, S2401, S2504, S2411, and S25002. www.Factfinder.census.gov

Where there is insufficient data it is reported as NA.

Geography used in this analysis:

Census tracts: 163, 169 and 170 were used to define the geographic area for the Muskego Way Neighborhood, and are indicated in shaded blue on the cover. The neighborhood boundaries are identified by Cesar Chavez Drive (16th St) to the west, Becher St to the south, Layton Boulevard (27th St) to the west and Greenfield Avenue to the north. These are displayed with a orange square on the cover map.

Table of Contents

Selected characteristics for Muskego Way and the City of Milwaukee

Introduction and Background4
Muskego Way Neighborhood Profile Narrative5
Table 1: Population by Race and Ethnicity8
Table 2: Population Sex by Age 8
Table 3: Poverty Status by Age 9
Table 4: Household Characteristics 9
Table 5: Vehicles per Household 10
Table 6: Employment Status by Sex 10
Table 7: Employment Sector by Sex 11
Table 8: Occupation and Median Earnings in the past 12 months11
Table 9: Educational Attainment 12
Table 10: Educational Attainment by Age 12
Table 11: Occupancy Characteristics 13
Table 12: Occupied Housing Unit Structures13
Table 13: Occupant Bedrooms14
Table 14: Year Housing Units Built 14
Table 15: Rent Paid by Renters 15
Table 16: Mortgage Costs for Owner Occupied Housing (with a mortgage)16
Table 17: Commute to work, time and method 17
Appendix: Additional data requests
Table 18: Place of birth for foreign born population 18
Table 19: Language spoken at home, and percent of foreign language
speakers who speak English "very well"18

Introduction and Background

This report was prepared by DATA YOU CAN USE, INC. The framework is based on input and advice from community organizers working in the neighborhoods supported by Milwaukee's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. In partnership with the Nonprofit Center of Milwaukee, nine Neighborhood Strategic Planning (NSP) areas participated in the design and development of this template. Partners met to describe the data they wanted – data that would be useful to them in their planning, organizing, and fund development work. They also helped guide the format.

This *is* "data you can use" they concluded. It can be used with their staff, their partners, their funders, their elected officials and the residents of their neighborhoods. It can be used to supplement and support the stories and anecdotes of residents, to build a case for needed resources, and to identify more questions.

The process was replicated and refined for three neighborhoods participating in the Building Neighborhood Capacity Program (BNCP) and additional specialized data requests were added. In February of 2017, organizations representing the Zilber Neighborhood Initiative reviewed the templates, refined their geographic boundaries and requested additional specialized data. This report is a product of that process and after review by the neighborhood organization it will be posted on our website, <u>DataYouCanUse.org</u>.

Plans are underway to expand this effort to additional neighborhoods and to explore how the data can be made interactive. There is also an identified "wish list" for additional data that would help organizers and residents plan their strategies and tell their story. The content and format are better because of the input of the neighborhood organizers and residents who contributed. We welcome your feedback.

Thank you.

Muskego Way Neighborhood Profile Narrative

This narrative is intended to introduce the following Muskego Way Neighborhood Portrait created by Data You Can Use, for the Milwaukee Christian Center in order to inform the targeted activities taking



place through "Muskego Way Forward".

This map shows the Muskego Way neighborhood boundaries identified with an orange line, over a shaded blue area, which acknowledges the area for which the data is analyzed. This is a limitation encountered when using census data and tracts, and all data in this report comes from the 2017 American Community Survey conducted by the U.S. Census Bureau.

Population and Household Composition:

Just over 14,000 people live in the Muskego Way neighborhood. Three quarters (75%) identify as Hispanic or Latino. The next largest group (17%) is White. The remaining 9% are a combination of other races. Compare to the city, this neighborhood has more Hispanics and Latinos; 75% compared to 18%; fewer Black or African Americans 5% compared to 39% city-wide; and fewer Whites 17% compared to 35%. (Table 1).

Youth 17 and under make a higher percentage of the Muskego Way population than in the City of Milwaukee; they account for just over a quarter (26%) of the City's population, while they are one third (33%) of the Muskego Way population. Overall, 51% of the residents of Muskego Way are male and 49% are female, while city-wide 48% are male and 52% are female. (Table 2)

Overall, residents of Muskego way are poorer than city residents as a whole, with 39% of residents living below the poverty level (\$24,000/ year for a family of four) compared to 27% city-wide. Children under 11 years of age make up 32% of the residents of Muskego Way living below the poverty level, while they makeup 28% of city residents living under the poverty level (Table 3).

The residents of Muskego Way live in 4,371 households. There are 2,951 family households, which is 68% of all households, compared to just over half (55%) of households in the City of Milwaukee. As for the distribution of family households in Muskego Way, 54% are married-couple families, 32% are female led with no husband present, and 15% have a male householder with no wife present. Compared to the city, the percentage of all households that have a female householder with no husband is the same (21%), and the percentage of household with a male householder is slightly higher (10%) vs 6% city-wide (Table 4).

Employment and Income

Working age people, ages 20-64, account for 7,729 residents of Muskego Way. The median income by household in Muskego Way is \$26, 942, lower than the city-wide median income of \$38,289. The unemployment rate, which measures people who are currently seeking work, for Muskego Way residents is 7%, slightly lower than the city unemployment rate of 9%. However, the percentage of

people not in the labor force, not working, and not actively seeking work, is higher: 32% of Muskego Way residents compared to 24% of residents citywide. Combining these rates shows us that overall more (39%) of working age Muskego Way residents are not working, compared to 33% of working age City residents. One of the subgroups that contributes to this is the over half (53%) of female Muskego Way residents with children under 6 who are not working, compared to 36% city-wide. (Table 5 and 6)

There are just over 5,000 residents of Muskego Way who are over 16 and employed. The highest share of these work in service occupations (29, followed by production, transportation, and material moving occupations (28%). Another third (32%) work in the sales and office occupations and the natural resources, construction and maintenance occupations. The remaining 11% work in management, business, science and arts occupation, which tends to be the most highly compensated industry. A much smaller share of Muskego Way residents work in this industry compared to the city; 11% compared to 31%. (Table 7) The overall median earnings in Muskego Way are much lower than the City, \$22,053 compared to \$29,128. Median earnings are lower in each occupations? which is frequently the highest category for income. Muskego Way residents' median earnings are 60% of the median earnings in this category for City residents overall. (Table 8)

Education

There are approximately 9,400 residents of Muskego Way who are 18 and over. Over half (57%) have obtained a high school degree (or equivalency). About one in five (20%) have attended some college. A bachelor's degree is generally considered a proxy for a good paying job, and 3% have achieved a Bachelor's degree or higher. The age group least likely to have achieved a high school diploma are those residents 65 and older (50%), followed by 35 to 64-year-olds (45%).

The rate at which Muskego Way residents have not achieved a high school diploma is two and a half time the City's rate- 43% compared to 17%. There is also a strong disparity between the share of Muskego Way residents who have a college degree (Bachelor's or higher), 3% compared to 21% of residents city-wide. (Table 8 and 9)

Housing and Homeownership

There are just over 5,000 units in Muskego Way. Occupied units make up 86%, and there are 14% vacant. Of the occupied units, one third are owner-occupied, and two thirds are renter occupied. The city has a lower vacancy rate (11%), and a higher owner-occupancy rate (42%). (Table 10)

The largest share of units in Muskego Way have two bedrooms, these represent 36%. Three bedroom units are another 30% share of units in Muskego Way. Units in Muskego Way have a similar distribution of bedrooms to units across this City of Milwaukee- in no category is there a difference of 5% or over by share. Housing stock is older in Muskego Way than in the City- 69% of units were built in 1939 or earlier compared to 36% of units city-wide. Construction of recent units has also been slow. Housing units constructed since 2000 make up 3%, and construction between 1980-1999 is another 3% of all housing units in Muskego Way. (Table 12 and 13)

Of the occupied units in Muskego way, single-family detached units account for a 38% share in Muskego Way, slightly lower than the city share. These units are 71% owner-occupied; and include the greater

share of owner occupants in Muskego Way. Duplexes account for 38% of units in Muskego Way, and are much more common than in the city, where they account for 20% of occupied units. (Table 11)



Generally speaking, rental rates in Muskego Way are lower than the City, with an outlier where they account for 10% of all rental units at the \$200-249 range. Mortgage costs, for owner occupied housing with a mortgage, are also generally lower than mortgage costs

citywide. The largest share of mortgages for Muskego Way residents are in the \$900-\$999 range (27%), followed by \$1,000-\$1,249 (26%). The highest shares of mortgage costs in the City are the \$1,500-\$1,999 range (22%), followed by the \$1,000-\$1,249 (22%). In the highest category, mortgage costs of \$2,000, includes only 3% of mortgages in Muskego Way compared to 11% of mortgages citywide. (Table 14 and Table 15)

Transportation and Travel time to Work:

Households in Muskego Way are slightly less likely to have a vehicle available than households city-wide: 23% in Muskego Way compared to 18% of City of Milwaukee households have no vehicle available. Households with a single vehicle available make up 37% of Muskego Way households, which is again, slightly lower than the 44% of Milwaukee households with a single vehicle. Households with two or more vehicles make up 40% of households in Muskego Way, and 38% of households city-side. (Table 5)

For commuting to work, 88% of residents in Muskego Way use a car, van or truck. This is consistent with the City of Milwaukee where 85% use a car to commute to work. Commute time to work is a measure used to assess access to and availability of jobs. One-way commutes over 45 minutes are considered excessive. The same percentage of Muskego Way residents have commute times of over 45 minutes as residents in the City of Milwaukee, 9%. (Table 16)

Place of Origin and Language:

Muskego Way has nearly 4,000 residents who are foreign born, who originate almost entirely from Latin America and Mexico in particular. In fact, 96% of the foreign born population in Muskego Way is from Mexico specifically. Related to this, Muskego Way has a large population of Spanish speakers. Monolingual English speakers make up 35% of Muskego Way residents compared to 81% of residents of the City of Milwaukee. Spanish speakers make up the rest of Muskego Way residents (65%), with under 1% speaking other languages. It is important to note that half of the Spanish speakers speak English "very well" and so two thirds of Muskego Way residents speak English "very well".

Table 1: Population by Race and Ethnicity

	Muskeg	o Way	City of M	ilwaukee
	Count	Share	Count	Share
Race	14,083		599,086	
American Indian and Alaska Native	242	1.7%	2,577	0.4%
Asian	51	0.4%	23,730	4.0%
Black or African American	709	5.0%	230,599	38.5%
White	2,384	16.9%	214,553	35.8%
Some other race	0	0.0%	817	0.1%
Two or more races	176	1.2%	16,422	2.7%
Hispanic or Latino Ethnicity	10,521	74.7%	110,388	18.4%

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

Table 2: Population Sex by Age

	Muskeg	Muskego Way		waukee
Population Sex by Age	Count	Share	Count	Share
Total:	14,083		599,086	
Male:	7,181	51.0%	288,171	48.1%
Under 5 years	764	10.6%	23,413	8.10%
5 to 9 years	740	10.3%	22,419	7.8%
10 to 14 years	637	8.9%	21,177	7.3%
15 to 17 years	325	4.5%	12,377	4.3%
18 to 20 years	225	3.1%	16,142	5.6%
21 to 24 years	257	3.6%	20,299	7.0%
25 to 34 years	1,391	19.4%	48,280	16.8%
35 to 54 years	1,852	25.8%	68,906	23.9%
55 to 66 years	564	7.9%	35,049	12.2%
67 years and older	426	5.9%	20,109	7.0%
Female:	6,902	49.0%	310,915	51.9%
Under 5 years	764	11.1%	22,353	7.2%
5 to 9 years	704	10.2%	22,317	7.2%
10 to 14 years	599	8.7%	20,339	6.5%
15 to 17 years	182	2.6%	12,409	4.0%
18 to 20 years	282	4.1%	16,242	5.2%
21 to 24 years	245	3.5%	21,344	6.9%
25 to 34 years	898	13.0%	52,892	17.0%
35 to 54 years	1,801	26.1%	75,237	24.2%
55 to 66 years	644	9.3%	37,944	12.2%
67 years and older	783	11.3%	29,838	9.6%

Table 3: Poverty Status by Age

	Muske	ego Way	City of Mi	lwaukee
Residents Living Below Poverty	Count	Percent	Count	Percent
Total residents:	13,879		582,553	
Residents with income in the past 12 months below poverty level:	5,433	39.1%	159,660	27.4%
Under 5 years	838	15.4%	18,954	11.9%
5 to 11 years	885	16.3%	25,494	16.0%
12 to 14 years	393	7.2%	9,200	5.8%
15 to 17 years	162	3.0%	7,870	4.9%
18 to 24 years	341	6.3%	24,368	15.3%
25 to 34 years	719	13.2%	23,045	14.4%
35 to 44 years	873	16.1%	16,062	10.1%
45 to 54 years	599	11.0%	13,972	8.8%
55 to 64 years	377	6.9%	12,773	8.0%
65 to 74 years	110	2.0%	4,423	2.8%
75 years and over	136	2.5%	3,499	2.2%

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

Table 4: Household Characteristics

Population Households		xego Way nits	-	lilwaukee nits	
Total:	4,	371	230),463	
Family households:	2,	951	126	5,976	
Married-couple family	1,	586	63,	,656	
Other family:	1,	365	63,	,320	
Male householder, no wife					
present	4	31	13,	,888	
Female householder, no					
husband present	934		49,432		
Nonfamily households:	1,	420	103,487		
Householder living alone	1,	193	82,176		
Householder not living alone	2	27	21,311		
Households by Sex	Units	Percent	Units	Percent	
Male householder	431	9.9%	13,888	6.0%	
Female householder	934	21.4%	49,432	21.4%	
			-		
Median Household Income					
Male householder	\$26	5,932	\$38,289		
Female householder, no husband present Nonfamily households: Householder living alone Householder not living alone Householder not living alone Male householder Female householder	1,420 1,193 227 Units Percent 431 9.9% 934 21.4%		49, 103 82, 21, Units 13,888 49,432	,432 ,487 ,176 ,311 Percent 6.0% 21.4%	

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

Data You Can Use | Muskego Way Neighborhood

Table 5: Vehicles per Household

	Muske	go Way	City of Mi	lwaukee
	Units	Percent	Units	Percent
Total:	4,371		230,463	
No vehicle available	1,002	22.9%	41,874	18.2%
1 vehicle available	1,617	37.0%	101,070	43.9%
2 vehicles available	1,344	30.7%	67,151	29.1%
3 vehicles available	232	5.3%	15,263	6.6%
4 or more vehicles available	176	4.0%	5,105	2.2%

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

Table 6: Employment Status by Sex

	Muskego Way					City of Milwaukee				
	Total	In labor force	Not in labor force	UnR*	Not working	Total	In labor force	Not in labor force	UnR*	Not working
Age 20 to 64 years	7,729	67.6%	32.4%	6.9%	37.3%	361,640	75.9%	24.1%	8.5%	30.6%
SEX										
Male	4,047	78.7%	21.3%	5.9%	26.1%	173,436	77.6%	22.4%	9.0%	29.4%
Female	3,682	55.3%	44.7%	8.7%	49.5%	188,204	74.4%	25.6%	8.1%	31.7%
With kids under 6 yrs	352	58.5%	41.5%	0.0%	41.5%	14,445	78.5%	21.5%	13.5%	32.2%

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

*UnR stands for "Unemployment Rate," or percentage of the labor force that is unemployed and actively seeking employment.

Not working is the percentage of people who are not in the labor force, combined with those who are unemployed.

Table 7: Employment Sector by Sex

	Muskego Way				City of Milwaukee			
Employed Population by Occupation	Total	Percent Employed	Male	Female	Total	Percent Employed	Male	Female
Civilian employed population 16 years and over:	5,189		60.5%	39.5%	271,071		48.5%	51.5%
Management, business, science, and arts occupations:	565	10.9%	45.7%	54.3%	82,881	30.6%	41.8%	58.2%
Service occupations:	1505	29.0%	54.7%	45.3%	64,083	23.6%	41.5%	58.5%
Sales and office occupations:	853	16.4%	28.5%	71.5%	60,418	22.3%	33.9%	66.1%
Natural resources, construction, and maintenance occupations:	810	15.6%	96.3%	3.7%	16,268	6.0%	92.5%	7.5%
Production, transportation, and material moving occupations:	1456	28.1%	71.2%	28.8%	47,421	17.5%	73.3%	26.7%

.

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

Table 8: Occupation and Median Earnings in the past 12 months

.

	Muskego Way	City of Milwaukee
Civilian employed population 16 years and over:	\$22,053	\$29,128
Management, business, science, and arts occupations:	\$27,692	\$46,107
Service occupations:	\$15,405	\$18,275
Sales and office occupations:	\$20,159	\$25,823
Natural resources, construction, and maintenance occupations:	\$22,043	\$33,282
Production, transportation, and material moving occupations:	\$20,874	\$27,076
Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau		

Table 9: Educational Attainment

	Muske	go Way	City of Mi	lwaukee
	Units	Percent	Units	Percent
Less than high school diploma	4,046	43.2%	73 <i>,</i> 468	16.6%
High school graduate (inc equivalency)	3,131	33.4%	132,142	29.9%
Some college, no bachelor's degree	1,885	20.1%	142,746	32.3%
Bachelor's degree or higher	306	3.3%	93 <i>,</i> 926	21.2%
Combined: High school graduate or higher	5,322	56.8%	368,814	83.4%
Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates IIS Cons	CUC RURAAU			

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

Table 10: Educational Attainment by Age

Table 10. Educational Attainment by Age				
			City	y of
	Muskego	Way	Milwa	aukee
	Count	Percent	Count	Percent
otal:	9,368		442,282	
18 to 24 years:	1,009		74,027	
Less than high school diploma	426	42.2%	10,942	14.8%
High school graduate (includes equivalency)	412	40.8%	22,145	29.9%
Some college, no bachelor's degree	145	14.4%	34,687	46.9%
Bachelor's degree or higher	26	2.6%	6,253	8.4%
25 to 34 years:	2,289		101,172	
Less than high school diploma	828	36.2%	11,266	11.1%
High school graduate (includes equivalency)	859	37.5%	26,361	26.1%
Some college, no bachelor's degree	532	23.2%	32,162	31.8%
Bachelor's degree or higher	70	3.1%	31,383	31.0%
35 to 64 years:	4,766		207,331	
Less than high school diploma	2,135	44.8%	36,624	17.7%
High school graduate (includes equivalency)	1,448	30.4%	63 <i>,</i> 092	30.4%
Some college, no bachelor's degree	1,027	21.5%	62,676	30.2%
Bachelor's degree or higher	156	3.3%	44,939	21.7%
65 years and over:	1,304		59 <i>,</i> 752	
Less than high school diploma	657	50.4%	14,636	24.5%
High school graduate (includes equivalency)	412	31.6%	20,544	34.4%
Some college, no bachelor's degree	181	13.9%	13,221	22.1%
Bachelor's degree or higher	54	4.1%	11,351	19.0%
ata Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau				

Table 11: Occupancy Characteristics

	Muske	go Way	City of Mi	lwaukee
Housing Status	Units	Percent	Units	Percent
Total housing units	5,085		257,810	
Vacant units	714	14.0%	27,347	10.6%
Owner and renter	4,371	86.0%	230,463	89.4%
Owner occupied	1,496	34.2%	96,462	41.9%
Renter occupied	2,875	65.8%	134,001	58.1%

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

Table 12: Occupied Housing Unit Structures

	Μ	uskego V	Vay	City of Milwaukee		
	Total	00	Rented	Total	00	Rented
	Units	Units	Units	Units	Units	Units
Occupied units	4,371	1,496	2,875	230,463	96 <i>,</i> 462	134,001
UNITS IN STRUCTURE						
1, detached	37.7%	70.7%	20.5%	41.5%	76.0%	16.7%
1, attached	3.0%	4.9%	1.9%	6.2%	5.1%	7.0%
2 apartments	38.3%	22.9%	46.3%	20.2%	11.7%	26.3%
3 or 4 apartments	6.4%	1.5%	9.0%	7.1%	1.3%	11.3%
5 to 9 apartments	2.2%	0.0%	3.4%	6.1%	0.7%	9.9%
10 or more apartments	12.5%	0.0%	19.0%	18.5%	4.6%	28.5%
Mobile home/other	0.0%	0.0%	0.0%	0.4%	0.6%	0.3%

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

OO= Owner Occupied.

Table 13: Occ	upant Bedrooms
---------------	----------------

	Musk	ego Way	City of Milwaukee			
Occupant Bedrooms	Count	Percent	Count	Percent		
Total:	5 <i>,</i> 085		257,810			
No bedroom	191	3.8%	8,145	3.2%		
1 bedroom	973	19.1%	41,599	16.1%		
2 bedrooms	1,825	35.9%	93,071	36.1%		
3 bedrooms	1,487	29.2%	85,594	33.2%		
4 bedrooms	502	9.9%	23,853	9.3%		
5 or more bedrooms	107	2.1%	5,548	2.2%		

Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau

	М	uskego V	Vay	City	of Milwa	ukee
	Total Units	OO Units	Rented Units	Total Units	OO Units	Rented Units
Occupied housing						
units	4,371	1,496	2,875	230,463	96,462	134,001
Year Structure Built						
2000 to later	2.8%	2.6%	2.9%	4.4%	3.7%	5.0%
1980 to 1999	2.6%	0.5%	3.7%	6.9%	4.3%	8.8%
1960 to 1979	7.5%	5.8%	8.3%	19.8%	16.9%	21.9%
1940 to 1959	18.4%	10.6%	22.5%	32.4%	39.3%	27.5%
1939 or earlier	68.7%	80.4%	62.6%	36.4%	35.8%	36.9%

Table 14: Year Housing Units Built

Table 15: Rent Paid by Renters

	Musk	Muskego Way		City of Milwaukee		
Rent Paid	Units	Percent	Units	Percent		
Total	2,875		134,001			
With cash rent:	2,809	97.7%	131,061	97.8%		
Less than \$100	8	0.3%	395	0.3%		
\$100 to \$149	0	0.0%	171	0.1%		
\$150 to \$199	10	0.3%	664	0.5%		
\$200 to \$249	277	9.6%	2,905	2.2%		
\$250 to \$299	51	1.8%	2,045	1.5%		
\$300 to \$349	39	1.4%	1,448	1.1%		
\$350 to \$399	24	0.8%	1,774	1.3%		
\$400 to \$449	23	0.8%	1,830	1.4%		
\$450 to \$499	118	4.1%	2,637	2.0%		
\$500 to \$549	139	4.8%	3,952	2.9%		
\$550 to \$599	181	6.3%	5,236	3.9%		
\$600 to \$649	214	7.4%	7,554	5.6%		
\$650 to \$699	220	7.7%	8,179	6.1%		
\$700 to \$749	251	8.7%	9,935	7.4%		
\$750 to \$799	273	9.5%	12,153	9.1%		
\$800 to \$899	447	15.5%	20,812	15.5%		
\$900 to \$999	274	9.5%	14,485	10.8%		
\$1,000 to \$1,249	214	7.4%	20,537	15.3%		
\$1,250 to \$1,499	46	1.6%	7,875	5.9%		
\$1,500 to \$1,999	0	0.0%	4,533	3.4%		
\$2,000 or more	0	0.0%	1,941	1.4%		
No cash rent	66	2.3%	2,490	2.2%		

Table 16: Mortgage Costs for Owner Occupied Housing (with a mortgage)

	Muske	ego Way	City of Mil	waukee
	Units	Percent	Units	Percent
Total Owner Occupied Housing	1,496		96,462	
Owner Occupied Housing without a				
mortgage	547	36.6%	31,112	32.3%
Owner Occupied Housing (with a				
mortgage)	949	63.4%	65 <i>,</i> 350	67.7%
Mortgage Costs for Owner Occupied				
Housing (with a mortgage)	949		65 <i>,</i> 350	
Less than \$200	0	0.0%	8	0.0%
\$200 to \$299	0	0.0%	39	0.1%
\$300 to \$399	0	0.0%	189	0.3%
\$400 to \$499	11	1.2%	375	0.6%
\$500 to \$599	29	3.1%	829	1.3%
\$600 to \$699	72	7.6%	1,849	2.8%
\$700 to \$799	72	7.6%	2,789	4.3%
\$800 to \$899	55	5.8%	4,000	6.1%
\$900 to \$999	252	26.6%	5,147	7.9%
\$1,000 to \$1,249	243	25.6%	14,511	22.2%
\$1,250 to \$1,499	103	10.9%	13,787	21.1%
\$1,500 to \$1,999	84	8.9%	14,617	22.4%
\$2,000 or more	28	3.0%	7,210	11.0%

Table 17: Commute to work, time and method

		Tota	als	Under 1	5 min	15 to 2	9 min	30 to 4	14 min	45 to 5	9 min	60 m mo	_
		#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%
	Total	5,073		1,268	25.0%	2,418	47.7%	953	18.8%	277	5.5%	157	3.1%
, ogo	Car/ truck/van	4,454	87.7%	1,205	95.0%	2,237	92.5%	849	89.1%	198	71.5%	42	26.8%
Muskego Way	Public transit	418	8.2%	61	4.8%	121	5.0%	79	8.3%	60	21.7%	101	64.3%
Σ Σ	Walk	47	0.9%	3	0.2%	0	0.0%	25	2.6%	19	6.9%	1	0.6%
	Тахі	154	3.0%	0	0.0%	60	2.5%	0	0.0%	0	0.0%	13	8.3%
e	Total	257,885		68,402	26.5%	118,631	46.0%	48,050	18.6%	10,718	4.2%	12,084	4.7%
of ukee	Car/truck/ van	218,574	84.8%	58,073	84.9%	108,398	91.4%	40,892	85.1%	7,653	71.4%	4,918	40.7%
- a	Public transit	21,607	8.4%	1,573	2.3%	5,316	4.5%	5,623	11.7%	2,664	24.9%	6,488	53.7%
Cit	Walk	12,735	4.9%	8,755	12.8%	3,087	2.6%	762	1.6%	166	1.5%	163	1.3%
	Тахі	4,969	1.9%	0	0.0%	1,830	1.5%	773	1.6%	235	2.2%	515	4.3%
Data Sour	Data Source: 2017 American Community Survey Estimates, US Census Bureau												





Appendix: Additional data requests

Appendix: Table 18: Place of birth for foreign born population

	Muske	ego Way	City of Milwaukee		
	Units	Percent	Units	Percent	
Total population foreign born	3,890		58,047		
Americas	3,818	98.1%	33,331	57.4%	
Latin America	3,810	99.8%	32,809	98.4%	
Mexico	3,718	97.6%	28,584	87.1%	
South America	20	0.5%	979	3.0%	
Northern America (Canada)	8	0.2%	522	1.6%	
Asia	53	1.4%	15,535	26.8%	
Europe	19	0.5%	5,039	8.7%	
Africa	0	0.0%	4,066	7.0%	
Oceana	0	0.0%	76	0.1%	

Table 19: Language spoken at home, and percent of foreign language speakers who speak English "very well"

	Muske	ego Way	City of Milwaukee		
	Units	Percent	Units	Percent	
Total population 5 years and over	12,555		553,320		
English speaking only	4,334	34.5%	446,008	80.6%	
Speak a language other than English	8,221	65.5%	107,312	24.1%	
Population that speaks a language other	8,221		107,312		
than English					
Spanish	8144	99.1%	75669	70.5%	
Who speak English "very well"	4064	49.9%	43068	56.9%	
Other Indo-European languages	49	0.6%	9501	8.9%	
Who speak English "very well"	30	61.2%	6947	73.1%	
Asian and Pacific Island languages	28	0.3%	16473	15.4%	
Who speak English "very well"	0	-	8616	52.3%	
Other languages	0	-	5669	5.3%	
Who speak English "very well"	0	-	3446	60.8%	